
City of Capitola Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Jacques Bertrand  

Vice Mayor: Kristen Petersen  

Council Members: Ed Bottorff  

 Yvette Brooks  

 Sam Storey  

   

 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
7:00 PM 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Larry Laurent 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Confidential Employees; (4) Mid-Management Group; and (5) Department 
Heads 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –  ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(4). 

(One potential case) 
 

LIABILITY CLAIMS [Govt. Code §54956.95] 

(Two claims) 
Claimant:  Bruce Stamps 
Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 
Claimant:  Madeline Chiavetta 
Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 
 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 26, 2019 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 9/19/2019 5:03 PM 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Sam Storey, Kristen Petersen, Yvette Brooks, Ed Bottorff, and Mayor 
Jacques Bertrand 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

Presentations are limited to eight minutes. 

A. Junior Guards Recognition  

B. Introduce New Building Inspector 

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or identify issues 
for staff response or future council consideration. No individual shall speak for more than 
two minutes. 

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 26, 2019 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 9/19/2019 5:03 PM 

 
A. Consider the September 12, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.  

C. Liability Claim of Bruce Stamps  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 

D. Liability Claim of Madeline Chiavetta  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 

E. Approval of City Check Registers Dated August 2, August 7, August 16, August 23 
and August 30, 2019  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 

F. Adopt an Ordinance Amending Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading of an Ordinance amending 
Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275 pertaining to City Council Member salary 
to provide an adjusted salary of $600 per month for members of the City Council, to 
be effective upon the start of new terms of office following the November 2020 
General Municipal Election. 

G. Adopt an Ordinance Adding Chapter 18.04 to the Capitola Municipal Code Pertaining 
to Development Agreements  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading. 

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Consider a Report Regarding Residency Requirements for Planning Commission 
and City Advisory Board Membership  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction regarding 
residency requirements for Planning Commission and City advisory bodies. 

B. Receive a Presentation from the Monterey Regional Waste Management District to 
Begin Negotiations for a Long-Term Agreement for Disposal and Recycling 
Processing  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Direct staff to negotiate a new Waste Disposal 
Agreement with Monterey Regional Waste Management District for solid waste 
disposal and recycling processing and to reopen the Refuse, Recycling and Yard 
Waste Services Franchise Agreement with Green Waste Recovery, Inc., to account 
for the new disposal rates. 

C. Update on the Capitola Branch Library Project  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 

D. Consider Elimination of Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Capitola Art and Cultural Commission’s 
recommended changes to the bylaws to remove term limits of the commissioners. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 26, 2019 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 9/19/2019 5:03 PM 

 
 10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall prior to 
the meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, 
Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting 
Agendas/Videos.” Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time. 

 



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Junior Guards Recognition  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola will acknowledge members of the 2019 

Capitola Junior Lifeguard program who were selected by their instructors for recognition as 

examples of leadership, determination, and teamwork: 

Session 1: 

Iron Woman Ella Mazurek 

Iron Man Mason Carlton 

Dory Award Logan Cardoza 

Dory Award Julia Watson 

 

Session 2: 

Iron Woman Dagny Wallace 

Iron Man Nathan Hanson 

Dory Award  Riley Tall 

Dory Award  "Frosty" Bartoszek 

 

Guard of the Year Evan Reade 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduce New Building Inspector  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Catherine Thrasher joined the City staff on September 9. 2019, 
as the City’s new Building Inspector.  She most recently worked for the building consulting firm 4 
Leaf, Inc., as a building inspector.  Ms. Thrasher spent the past four years taking classes at 
Cabrillo College to earn her certification, and is a resident of Santa Cruz County. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.B

Packet Pg. 6



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the September 12, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular 

meeting of September 12, 2019. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 9-12 draft minutes 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 7



 

 

DRAFT 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2019  

 

Mayor Bertrand called the meeting to order at 7 p.m. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member Yvette Brooks: Present, Council Member Ed Bottorff: Present, Council 
Member Sam Storey: Present, Vice Mayor Kristen Petersen: Present, Mayor Jacques 
Bertrand: Present. 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Children's Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation 
 
Mayor Bertrand read the proclamation. Mary Smith of Jacob’s Heart invited the 
community to Kidrageous in Watsonville on September 29. 

B. Update on City Deferred Compensation 457 Plan for Employees 
 
Finance Director Jim Malberg noted 26 employees and 32 retirees participate in the 
program, which has no cost to the City. This spring he requested proposals to reduce 
administrative costs paid by participants. Representatives from the hourly employees 
and police union and mid-management group formed the selection committee, which 
unanimously supported switching to Voya. Transition will begin this fall. 

 3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - None 

 4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA - None 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Shannon Munz, Santa Cruz Regional Transportation Commission, encouraged local 
residents to consider applying for its Elderly and Disabled Transportation Advisory 
Committee. 
 
Gail spoke about the health hazard of children's cancer caused by cell towers. 
 
Cherrie McCoy spoke about street safety and Merlone Geier's plans for the Capitola Mall 
redevelopment. 

 6. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS 

Council Member Brooks visited New Brighton Middle School and received positive input on 
the new afterschool program. She asked for a future agenda item to look into providing 
scholarships from the dedicated children's fund. 

 7. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 12, 2019 

 

A. Appointment of Children's Network Cabinet Alternate 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint Kristin Murphy as the City’s alternate on the 
Children’s Network Cabinet for a term through December 2020.  

 

MOTION: APPOINT KRISTIN MURPHY AS THE CITY’S ALTERNATE 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Yvette Brooks, Council Member 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

B. Reappointment of Historical Museum Board Youth Member 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reappoint Joshua Henshaw as the youth member for a 
one-year term as recommended by the Historical Museum Board trustees. 
 

MOTION: APPOINT JOSHUA HENSHAW TO A SECOND TERM AS YOUTH 
MEMBER 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Council Member 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION: ADOPT AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Council Member 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

A. Consider the August 22, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Continue Discussion of the Revised Zoning Code for Coastal Commission 
Certification 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Continue the discussion to the meeting of October 24, 
2019. 

C. Consider an Update to the Santa Cruz Metro Records System Agreement 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the amended agreement adding the County of 
Santa Cruz to the new records system. 

D. Authorize the City to Sell Surplus Vehicles 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Declare three Police Department motorcycles as surplus 
property and authorize their sale/auction.  

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Application from the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Association 
(BIA) to Display Banners and Holiday Wreaths and Trees in the Village 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider two applications from the Capitola Village and 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 12, 2019 

 

Wharf Business Improvement Association (BIA) to display seasonal decorative 
banners on streetlights and holiday wreaths and trees in the Village. 

 
Public Works Director Steve Jesberg presented the staff report, noting these are the first 
applications under the new Village decoration policy. 
 
Anthony Guajardo, chairperson of the BIA, confirmed that the images presented are 
those proposed for use on the banners. Members of the BIA marketing group reviewed 
existing photos for those that meet the policy standards and selected the ones 
presented. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Council agreed that the wreaths and trees have been attractive additions to the Village in 
recent years, and separated their approval from the banners. 
 

MOTION: APPROVE THE HOLIDAY WREATHS AND TREES AS SUBMITTED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

 
Council Member Bottorff said he did not feel qualified to evaluate the banner images and 
moved to submit them to the Art and Cultural Commission for review prior to Council 
approval.  
 
Council Member Brooks said she finds a lack of diversity, including age, in the images 
and her friendly amendment to include those factors in the review was accepted. 
 
Council Member Storey said he does not feel Art Commission review is appropriate for 
commercial art. City Manager Goldstein suggested asking the BIA to identify a process, 
perhaps using social media outreach.  
 
The Council expressed regret for a slower approval timeline. Mr. Guajardo said that 
while the BIA hoped to install banners this Fall, it wants to get them right as the plan is to 
use them for several years. 

Council Member Petersen offered a second friendly amendment to request that both the 
BIA and Arts Commission review the images. 

MOTION: REQUEST THE BIA TO CONSIDER DEVELOPING A REVIEW PROCESS 
AND INCLUDE BANNER PHOTOS WITH GREATER AGE AND 
CULTURAL DIVERSITY AND ASK IF THE ART AND CULTURAL 
COMMISSION WILL REVIEW THE IMAGES AND PROVIDE COUNCIL 
WITH A RECOMMENDATION 

RESULT: ADOPTED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Mayor 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 12, 2019 

 

B. Recreation Strategic Plan Group Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: No action required.  Council discretion to appoint a 
representative to the Recreation Strategic Plan Core Team. 
 

Recreation Supervisor Nikki Bryant LeBlond presented the staff report, outlining the 
identified stakeholder groups asked to provide members to the core team working on the 
strategic plan. She asked if Council wishes to have representation. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

Mayor Bertrand expressed interest in serving on the team and suggested the 
possibility that two Council Members join the group.  
 
Council Member Bottorff said he felt two members could feel "top heavy" and 
influence the group. 
 

MOTION: APPOINT MAYOR BERTRAND AS THE COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE 
ON THE CORE TEAM 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

C. Consider an Ordinance Amending Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275 as 
Recommended by the Finance Advisory Committee 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider the Finance Advisory Committee 
recommendation to adjust Council Member compensation and approve the first 
reading of an Ordinance amending Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275 
pertaining to City Council Member salary to provide an adjusted salary of $600 per 
month for members of the City Council, to be effective upon the start of new terms of 
office following the November 2020 General Municipal Election. 

 
Finance Director Malberg presented the staff report on the Finance Advisory 
Committee's review of and recommendation regarding an increase in Council 
compensation to $600 following the next election. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
Council members noted that the salary does not and is not intended to compensate 
for the amount of work, but the proposed increase acknowledges that the time is 
valued. 
 

MOTION:  APPROVE THE FIRST READING AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: FIRST READING PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Council Member 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 12, 2019 

 

D. Consider a Contract for an Environmental Consultant for Capitola Mall 
Redevelopment 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to award a contract to 
Dudek for $276,470 to prepare the environmental documents related to the Capitola 
Mall redevelopment project.  

 
Community Development Director Katie Herlihy presented the staff report 
recommending the environmental consultant that will work with other consultants and 
staff on the Capitola Mall redevelopment. Dudek was identified early as the top choice, 
and staff and Merlone Geier then spent time focusing on the pricing and scope of work. 
She also noted that the City reduced its usual fee since other consultants will be 
handling much of the oversight. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE THE CONTRACT AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Council Member 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

E. Introduce an Ordinance Adding Chapter 18.04 to the Capitola Municipal Code 
Pertaining to Development Agreements 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the first reading. 
 

Director Herlihy presented the staff report, including an explanation of a development 
agreement's use and benefits to clarify expectations for both the City and developer. 

 

Council Member Brooks asked about language referencing low-income housing and 
whether it can limit the City’s options. City Attorney Samantha Zutler suggested 
amending the language to read “Facilitate the development of complex projects, such as 
multi-phase developments, income-restricted housing developments …" 
 
There was no public comment. 

 

MOTION:  APPROVE THE FIRST READING AS AMENDED 

RESULT: FIRST READING PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Yvette Brooks, Council Member 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Brooks, Bottorff, Storey, Petersen, Bertrand 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 
 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 12, 2019 

 

   _____________________ 
    Jacques Bertrand, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-1
2 

d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Action Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.  
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review are the action minutes of the September 5, 2019, 
Planning Commission regular meeting.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 9-5-19 Action 
 

Report Prepared By:   Chloe Woodmansee 
 Records Coordinator 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 14



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 9/6/2019 8:07 AM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2019 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners Christiansen, Newman, Routh, Wilk and Chair Welch were all present.  

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments – none  

C. Commission Comments – none  

D. Staff Comments – none  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Jul 18, 2019 7:00 PM 

 
MOTION: Approve the minutes.  

RESULT: APPROVED  

MOVER: Mick Routh 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Routh, Christiansen 

RECUSED: Peter Wilk 

 
B. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Aug 1, 2019 7:00 PM 

 
MOTION: Approve the minutes.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Mick Routh 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A. 523 Riverview Drive   #19-0323   APN: 035-042-05 

Coastal Development Permit to replace an existing retaining wall located within 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
Note: Request to Continue to October 3, 2019. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-5
-1

9 
A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – September 5, 2019 2 
 

Property Owner: Ed Bottorff 
Representative: Ed Bottorff, Filed: 07.11.2019 
 

MOTION: Continue to the next regular meeting on October 3, 2019.   

RESULT: CONTINUED [OCTOBER 3, 2019 MEETING] 

MOVER: Edward Newman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

 
B. 204 Fanmar Way   #19-0294   APN: 035-151-11 

Design Permit for first-story additions and a new roof on a nonconforming single-
family residence located within the RM-LM (Multiple-Family Low-Medium 
Density) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Eric Miller 
Representative: Eric Miller, Filed: 06.19.2019 
 

MOTION: Approve the Design Permit.  

RESULT: APPROVED [4 to 0] 

MOVER: Courtney Christiansen 

SECONDER: Mick Routh  

AYES: Newman, Welch, Routh, Christiansen 

RECUSED: Peter Wilk 

 
C. 620 Oak Drive    #19-0113   APN: 035-301-06 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions to a single-family residence 
within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Robert Reed 
Representative: Roy Horn, Filed: 03.08.19 
 
This item was pulled from the consent calendar and heard before Item 5.A.  
 

MOTION: Approve the Design Permit.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 115 San Jose Avenue - Pizzeria - Alcohol #19-0332  APN: 035-221-19 
Amendment to a Conditional Use Permit for alcohol sales for La Bufala, a take-
out pizza restaurant located within the Mercantile, in the CV (Central Village) 
zoning district.  

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-5
-1

9 
A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – September 5, 2019 3 
 

This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Dwares 
Representative: Sandro Costanza, Filed: 07.11.2019 
 

MOTION: Approve the amendment to the Conditional Use Permit, to allow for alcohol sales.  

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 

MOVER: Peter Wilk 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Welch, Wilk, Christiansen 

NAYS: Mick Routh 

RECUSED: Ed Newman 

 
B. 1440 41st Avenue   #19-0369   APN: 034-111-50 

Conditional Use Permit to operate and expand Hot Elevation Studios, a fitness 
studio located within the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Four Starr Properties 
Representative: Fuse Architects, Filed: 08.05.2019 
 

MOTION: Approve the Conditional Use Permit and Coastal Development Permit.  

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Edward Newman 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh 

RECUSED: Courtney Christiansen 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:54 p.m. to the next regular Planning Commission meeting on October 3, 
2019.  
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, Clerk to the Commission 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

-5
-1

9 
A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Liability Claim of Bruce Stamps  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Bruce Stamps has filed a liability claim against the City in the amount of 

$1,989.00. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Liz Nichols 
 Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 18



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Liability Claim of Madeline Chiavetta  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Madeline Chiavetta has filed a liability claim against the City for an 

undetermined amount. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Liz Nichols 
 Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 19



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated August 2, August 7, August 16, August 

23 and August 30, 2019  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 
 

Account: City Main 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Payment 

Count 
Amount 

8/2/2019 93328 93373 49 $2,023,802.13 

8/7/2019 93374 93438 69 $203,663.26 

8/16/2019 93439 93519 82 $109,525.13 

8/23/2019 93520 93588 75 $242,946.42 

8/30/2019 93589 93643 58 $119,258.59 

The main account check register dated July 26, 2019, ended with check #93327.   
 

Account: Library 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Payment 

Count 
Amount 

8/16/2019 143 145 3 $41,617.01 

8/23/2019 146 147 2 $762,035.06 

8/30/2019 148 148 1 $400 

The library account check register dated July 26, 2019, ended with check #142. 
 

Account: Payroll 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Payment 

Count 
Amount 

7/29/2019 5558 5558 1 $125.44 

8/2/2019 5559 5564 132 $196,884.27 

8/16/2019 5565 5571 134 $209,294.67 

8/23/2019 5572 5609 36 $19,599.18 

8/30/2019 5610 5613 95 $169,432.31 

The payroll account check register dated July 19, 2019, ended with check #5557. 
 
Following is a list of payments issued for more than $10,000 and descriptions of the expenditures: 
 

8.E

Packet Pg. 20



Approval of City Check Registers  
September 26, 2019 
 

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount 

93341 City of Santa Cruz PD 
July – Sept. lifeguard 

services 
$83,152 

93357 
Monterey Bay Area Self 

Insurance Authority 
CM 

FY19/20 EAP, WC, liability 

and property insurance 
$349,384.20 

EFT 

809 
CalPERS Fiscal Services CM 

FY19/20 PERS 

UAL prepayment 
$1,480,350 

EFT 

810 
CalPERS Health Insurance CM August health insurance $61,822.39 

93398 
Long Beach BMW 

Motorcycles 
PD 2019 BMW motorcycle $29,352.61 

93418 Soquel Creek Water district PW 
July water and 

irrigation service 
$14,895.49 

EFT 

812 
IRS FN 

Federal taxes and Medicare 

PPE 7/27/19 
$31,510.67 

EFT 

813 
CalPERS Member Services CM 

PERS contributions 

PPE 7/27/19 
$53,815.51 

93458 
Central Fire Protection 

District 
REC Lifeguard training services $12,085 

93496 MV Transportation Inc. PW 
May and June summer 

beach shuttle 
$11,297 

93516 Wells Fargo Bank CM July credit card purchases $14,862.06 

143 Bogard Construction Inc. PW 
Library construction project 

management services 
$10,600 

145 Noll and Tam Architects PW 
Library interiors/FF&E, 

construction administration 
$29,657.01 

93553 SCC Auditor-Controller PD July citation processing $15,587 

93554 Santa Cruz County Bank FN Pac Cove financing lease $82,532.87 

EFT 

816 
CalPERS Member Services CM 

PERS contributions 

PPE 8/10/19 
$53,860.04 

EFT 

819 
IRS FN 

Federal taxes and Medicare 

PPE 8/10/19 
$32,997.27 

146 John F. Otto Escrow PW 
July library construction 

5% retainer 
$38,101.75 

147 Otto Construction Inc. PW 

Library concrete work, 

framing, HVAC, utilities, 

electrical 

$723,933.31 

93625 Pacific Gas and Electric PW Monthly gas and electricity $15,765.45 

93632 
Santa Cruz County Animal 

Shelter 
CM 

Quarterly animal services 

contribution 
$27,734.80 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 8/2/19 City Check Register 
2. 8/7/19 City Check Register 
3. 8/16/19 City Check Register 
4. 8/23/19 City Check Register 
5. 8/30/19 City Check Register 

8.E

Packet Pg. 21



Approval of City Check Registers  
September 26, 2019 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Maura Herlihy 
 Accountant I 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.E

Packet Pg. 22



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/7
/1

9 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/1
6/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.4

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/2
3/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.E.5

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

/3
0/

19
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt an Ordinance Amending Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading of an Ordinance amending Capitola 
Municipal Code Section 2.04.275 pertaining to City Council Member salary to provide an 
adjusted salary of $600 per month for members of the City Council, to be effective upon the 
start of new terms of office following the November 2020 General Municipal Election. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: On March 14, 2019, the City Council requested that the Finance 

Advisory Committee (FAC) review City Council Member compensation and make a 

recommendation to the City Council. City Council Member salaries are established by ordinance 

and were initially set at $75 per month in 1966. Salaries were subsequently increased to $150 

per month in 1977, $300 per month in 1991, and $500 per month in 2006.  

California Government Code Section 36516 allows the City Council to increase its 

compensation by an amount equal to 5 percent for each calendar year from the operative date 

of the last adjustment, provided that the City Council approves the increase by Ordinance and 

the increase does not go into effect until after the next General Municipal Election when new 

terms of office begin.  The maximum adjusted salary permitted by law in December 2020 is 

$989.97 per month. 

At the FAC meeting on May 22, 2019, the committee reviewed compensation history and 

compared the current salary to 11 other cities within Santa Cruz, Monterey, and San Benito 

counties. These cities are also being used for the employee compensation study currently 

underway: Santa Cruz, Watsonville, Scotts Valley, Marina, Seaside, Carmel, Pacific Grove, 

Monterey, Pismo Beach, Gilroy, and Hollister. The FAC unanimously approved recommending 

an increase of 20 percent to $600 per month.  

At its September 12 regular meeting, the City Council held a public hearing on the 

recommended compensation increase and unanimously passed the first reading of the 

proposed ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Increasing Council Member salaries to $600 per month will first impact Fiscal 
Year 2020-21 when the increase would become effective.  At that point the fiscal impact would 
be approximately $7,000 more annually, which includes $6,000 in salaries and $1,000 in 
benefits and employer payroll taxes. 
 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 71



City Council Compensation  
September 26, 2019 
 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 72



City Council Compensation  
September 26, 2019 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING 
CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.04.275 AND APPROVING AN ADJUSTED 
SALARY OF $600 PER MONTH FOR MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL UPON THE 
START OF NEW TERMS OF OFFICE FOLLOWING THE NOVEMBER 2020 GENERAL 

MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 

FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. FINDINGS 
 

A. The City Council initially established City Council Member at $75 per month by 
Ordinance No. 283 adopted February 14, 1966. City Council Member salaries were 
subsequently increased to $150 per month by adoption of Ordinance No. 418 on July 11, 1977, 
increased to $300 per month by Ordinance No. 716 adopted July 11, 1991, and increased to 
$500 per month by adoption of Ordinance No. 901 on March 23, 2006.  Each increase was in 
conformance with Government Code Section 36516, subdivision (c), which permits the City 
Council to increase its compensation by an amount equal to 5 percent for each calendar year 
from the operative date of the last adjustment, provided that the City Council approve the 
increase by Ordinance and the increase does not go into effect until after the next general 
municipal election when new terms begin.   

B. For purposes of Government Code Section 36516, the operative date of the last 
adjustment of salary was December 2006. 

C. Government Code Section 36516 permits an increase of 5 percent for each 
calendar year from December 2006. The adjusted salary permitted by law is $989.97 per month. 

Section 2.  Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.04.275 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“2.04.275 City Council Member Salary 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 36516, commencing December 2020 the 
salary for City Council Members shall be six hundred dollars ($600) per month and may be 
adjusted in accordance with state law. Such salary shall be payable in the same manner as 
salaries are paid to other officers and employees of the City.” 
 
Section 3. COMPLIANCE WITH CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. 

The City Council hereby finds that the action to adopt this ordinance will not result in any 
change in the environment and thus is not a project subject to the requirements of CEQA.  

Section 4. SEVERABILITY. 

The City Council hereby declares every section, paragraph, sentence, cause and phrase of this 
ordinance is severable. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 
is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity, or unconstitutionality 
shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses or phrases. 

8.F

Packet Pg. 73



City Council Compensation  
September 26, 2019 
 
Section 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance shall be in full force and take effect after the next general municipal election 
when new terms begin in December 2020. 
 
This ordinance was introduced on the 12th day of September 2019, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 26th day of September, 2019, by the 
following vote:   

 
AYES:   
NOES:   

ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

   
    APPROVED:  
 

____________________________ 
        Jacques Bertrand, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

8.F

Packet Pg. 74



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adopt an Ordinance Adding Chapter 18.04 to the Capitola Municipal Code 

Pertaining to Development Agreements  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the second reading. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The City anticipates entering into a development agreement in 

conjunction with the Capitola Mall redevelopment application.  However, the City does not 

currently have an ordinance to outline the process and requirements for such agreements.  City 

staff drafted a development agreement ordinance to outline the requirements and steps while 

provide transparency in the process. This process would apply to the mall project, and other 

potential future development agreement applications. 

The City Council held a public hearing to discuss the proposed ordinance on September 12, 

2019, and made a slight amendment in the language for 18.04.010(A)(2) from low-income to 

income-restricted housing developments. It then unanimously approved the first reading. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 75



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  
AMENDING TITLE 18 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE TO HOUSING AND 

DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION AND ADDING CHAPTER 18.04 OF THE CAPITOLA 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO AUTHORIZE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AND REAL PROPERTY OWNERS. 
 
WHEREAS, the State of California adopted Section 65864, et seq. of the Government Code 
which authorizes any city, county or city and county to enter into development agreements with 
an applicant for development projects, establishing certain development rights in the property 
which is the subject of the development project application; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Capitola does hereby find the overarching objectives of a 
development agreement are to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private 
participation in comprehensive planning and facilitate creative approaches to development 
projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Capitola does hereby find the purpose of a development 
agreement is to facilitate the development of complex multi-phase development, low-income 
housing developments, and developments involving public services and facilities installations 
which may require several years to complete, and   
 
WHEREAS, large redevelopment and housing applications are anticipated by the Capitola 
General Plan, including redevelopment of the 46-acre Capitola Mall site. 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Title 18.  Title 18 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Title 18 Housing and Development Administration 
 
  
Section 2. Chapter 18.040.  Section 18.040 is hereby added to read as follows: 
 
“Chapter 18.04 –  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 

Sections: 

18.04.010 Purpose 

18.04.020 Applications 

18.04.030 Contents of Development Agreements 

18.04.040 Consideration of Proposed Development Agreements 

8.G

Packet Pg. 76



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
18.04.050 Execution and Recordation of Development Agreement 

18.04.060 Annual Review 

18.04.070 Cancellation or Modification 

18.04.080 Miscellaneous Provisions 

18.04.010 Purpose 

A. This chapter establishes procedures for the processing of Development Agreements in 

compliance with the Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5. Development 

Agreements are intended to: 

1. Strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation and 

comprehensive planning, and facilitate creative approaches to development projects; 

2. Facilitate the development of complex projects, such as multi-phase developments, 

income-restricted housing developments, and developments involving public service and 

facilities installations which may require several years to complete; and 

3. Promote orderly growth and development, economic welfare, and adequate circulation, 

utilities and services.  

B. This chapter incorporates by reference the provisions of California Government Code 

Section 65864 et seq. and any successor statute(s). In the event of any conflict between the 

applicable statutory provisions and this chapter, the statutory provisions shall control.  

18.04.020 Applications 

An applicant for a development project may request that the City review a Development 

Agreement application in accordance with the following procedures.  

A. Forms and Information. The applicant shall submit a Development Agreement 

application on a form prescribed by the Community Development Director. The Director shall 

identify submittal requirements for Development Agreement applications, and may require an 

applicant to submit additional information and supporting data to process the application.  

B. Fees. At the time of initial filing of the application, the applicant shall pay fees, deposits 

and charges required to file and process the Development Agreement applications and to 

administer the approved Development Agreement, including annual reviews, in such amounts 

as established by resolution of the City Council. Prior to staff acting on the application, the 

developer must have a signed Developer Pass Through Agreement on file with the City. 

C. Authority to File Application. An applicant shall have a legal or equitable interest in the 

real property which is the subject of the proposed Development Agreement. The Community 

Development Director may require an applicant to submit proof of interest in the real property 

and/or of the authority of any agent to act for the applicant. Such proof may include a title report, 

8.G

Packet Pg. 77



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
policy or guarantee, issued by a title company licensed to do business in the state, which 

demonstrates the required interest of the applicant in the real property.  

18.04.030 Contents of Development Agreements 

The City Manager, and/or his or her designee(s), shall negotiate specific components and 

provisions of the Development Agreement with the applicant. The negotiated Development 

Agreement shall comply with the following requirements:  

A. The Development Agreement shall specify its duration; the permitted uses of the subject 

property; the density or intensity of uses; the maximum height and size of proposed buildings; 

and provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes.  

B. The Development Agreement shall contain an indemnity clause requiring the applicant to 

indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees harmless 

against claims arising out of or related to the actions of the applicant in connection with the 

application or the development process, including all legal fees and costs.  

C. The Development Agreement shall outline the benefits provided to the City from entering 

into the Development Agreement. Such benefits may include:  

1. Construction of public facilities beyond those required as a condition of approval; 

2. Covenants to operate and maintain the private project at higher levels than would 

otherwise be required;  

3. Proposals to achieve General Plan goals not directly associated with the private project; 

and 

4. Other proposals which, in the judgment of the Planning Commission and City Council, 

provide public benefits sufficient to justify a Development Agreement.  

D. The Development Agreement may also contain the following: 

1. Requirements for construction and maintenance of onsite and off-site improvements or 

payment of fees in lieu of such dedications or improvements.  

2. Conditions and restrictions imposed by the City with respect to the project, including 

conditions and restrictions proposed in the environmental review document prepared under the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), in order to eliminate or mitigate potential adverse 

environmental impacts of the project. 

3. Requirements for the timing of project construction, including project phasing.  

4. Conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for subsequent discretionary actions.  

5. Terms relating to subsequent reimbursement over time for applicant financing of public 

facilities.  

8.G

Packet Pg. 78



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
6. Other provisions necessary to guarantee performance of obligations stated in the 

agreement.  

E. A Development Agreement is a contract that is negotiated and voluntarily entered into by 

City and applicant and may contain any additional or modified conditions, terms or provisions 

agreed upon by the parties.  

18.04.040 Consideration of Proposed Development Agreements 

A. Initial Review of Application. The Community Development Director, or the Director’s 

designee, shall review the Development Agreement application to determine whether it is 

complete. If the application is found to be incomplete, the Community Development Director 

shall inform the applicant of the items or steps necessary to complete the application.  

B. Negotiations. After the application is deemed complete, the City Manager and/ or his or 

her designee(s) shall negotiate the specific components and provisions of the Development 

Agreement on behalf of the City.  

C. Planning Commission Recommendation. 

1. Following negotiation of the Development Agreement, the Planning Commission shall 

consider the Development Agreement for recommendation to the City Council.  

2. The Planning Commission shall consider the proposed Development Agreement at a 

public hearing noticed in conformance with Zoning Code Chapter 17.148 (Public Notice and 

Hearing). 

3. The Planning Commission hearing may be held concurrently with the public hearing on 

other land use approvals for the project. 

4. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council.  The 

recommendation shall include the Planning Commission's determination and supporting 

reasoning as to whether or not the findings in Section 1.06.E (Findings) can be made for the 

proposed Development Agreement.  

D. City Council Action. 

1. After the Planning Commission makes its recommendation, the City Council shall review 

and act on the proposed Development Agreement at a public hearing noticed in conformance 

with Zoning Code Chapter 17.148 (Public Notice and Hearing).   

2. The City Council hearing may be held concurrently with the public hearing on other land 

use approvals for the project. 

3. The proposed Development Agreement shall be executed by the applicant before it is 

placed before the City Council for consideration at a public hearing.  

8.G

Packet Pg. 79



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
4. The City Council shall consider the Planning Commission recommendation and may 

accept, accept with modification, or reject the proposed Development Agreement based on the 

findings in Section 1.60.040.E (Required Findings). 

E. Required Findings. To approve a proposed Development Agreement, the City Council 

must make the following findings: 

1. The Development Agreement is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific 

plan, and the Local Coastal Plan if within the coastal zone. This finding may be satisfied by a 

determination that the Development Agreement is consistent with amendments to the General 

Plan, the Local Coastal Plan, and any applicable specific plan to be adopted concurrently with 

the Development Agreement. 

2. The Development Agreement will provide Capitola with tangible benefits beyond those 

that may be required by the City through project conditions of approval. 

3. Environmental impacts related to the development agreement have been reviewed and 

considered in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act. 

F. Approval of Development Agreement. The City Council has the exclusive authority to 

approve the Development Agreement. Approval of a Development Agreement shall be by 

ordinance.  

G. Failure to Receive Notice. The failure of any person to receive notice required by law or 

this chapter shall not affect the authority of the City to enter into, modify or terminate a 

Development Agreement, nor invalidate a Development Agreement entered into by the City 

under this chapter.  

18.04.050 Execution and Recordation of Development Agreement 

A. Within ten days after the ordinance approving the Development Agreement takes effect, 

the City Manager shall execute the Development Agreement on behalf of the City, and the City 

Clerk shall record the Development Agreement with the Santa Cruz County Recorder.  

B. If the parties to the agreement or their successors in interest amend or cancel the 

Development Agreement, or if the City terminates or modifies the Development Agreement for 

failure of the applicant to fully comply with the provisions of the Development Agreement, the 

City Clerk shall record notice of such action with the Santa Cruz County Recorder.  

18.04.060 Annual Review 

A. Time for and Initiation of Review. 

1. The City Manager shall review an approved Development Agreement at least once a 

year, at which time the applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the Development 

Agreement.  

8.G

Packet Pg. 80



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
2. The applicant shall initiate the required annual review by submitting a written request at 

least sixty days prior to the review date specified in the Development Agreement. The applicant 

shall provide evidence as determined necessary by the City Manager to demonstrate good faith 

compliance with the Development Agreement. The burden of proof by substantial evidence of 

compliance is upon the applicant.  

B. Finding of Compliance. If the City Manager, on the basis of substantial evidence, finds 

compliance by the applicant with the Development Agreement, the City Manager shall issue a 

finding of compliance, which shall be in recordable form and may be recorded with the County 

Recorder after conclusion of the review.  

C. Finding of Noncompliance. 

1. If the City Manager finds the applicant has not complied with the Development 

Agreement, the City Manager may issue a finding of noncompliance which may be recorded by 

the City with the County Recorder after it becomes final. The City Manager shall specify in 

writing to the applicant the respects in which applicant has failed to comply, and shall set forth 

terms of compliance and specify a reasonable time for the applicant to meet the terms of 

compliance.  

2. If applicant does not comply with any terms of compliance within the prescribed time 

limits, the Development Agreement shall be subject to termination or modification pursuant to 

Section 1.60.070 (Cancellation or Modification).  

D. Appeal of Determination. The City Manager’s finding of compliance or noncompliance 

may be appealed in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 2.52 (Appeals to the City 

Council). 

18.04.070 Cancellation or Modification 

A. Cancellation or Modification by Mutual Consent. A Development Agreement may be 

canceled or modified by mutual consent of the parties. A Development Agreement may also 

specify procedures for administrative approval of minor amendments by mutual consent of the 

applicant and the City Manager. The process to cancel or modify a Development Agreement is 

the same as the procedure to establish the Development Agreement.  

B. Termination or Modification after Finding of Noncompliance. 

1. If applicant does not comply with the terms of compliance within the prescribed time 

limits, the City Manager may refer the Development Agreement to the City Council for 

termination or modification. 

2. The City Council shall conduct a public hearing to consider the finding of noncompliance 

and termination or modification. The burden of proof shall be on the applicant to establish at the 

public hearing that it has complied with the Development Agreement.   

8.G

Packet Pg. 81



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
3. The City Council may terminate the Development Agreement, modify the Development 

Agreement, modify the finding of noncompliance, or rescind the finding of noncompliance and 

issue a finding of compliance.  

C. Rights of the Parties after Cancellation or Termination. 

1. If a Development Agreement is canceled or terminated, all rights of the applicant, 

property owner or successors in interest under the Development Agreement shall terminate. 

2. If a Development Agreement is terminated following a finding of noncompliance, the City 

may, at its sole discretion, determine to return any and all benefits, including reservations or 

dedications of land, and payments of fees, received by the City.  

18.04.080 Miscellaneous Provisions 

A. Effect of Development Agreement. 

1. Unless otherwise specified in the Development Agreement, the City's rules, regulations 

and official policies governing permitted uses of the property, density and design, and 

improvement standards and specifications applicable to development of the property shall be 

those City rules, regulations and official policies in force on the effective date of the 

Development Agreement. The applicant shall not be exempt from otherwise applicable City 

ordinances or regulations pertaining to persons contracting with the City.  

2. A Development Agreement shall not prevent the City, in subsequent actions applicable 

to the property, from applying new rules, regulations and policies which do not conflict with 

those rules, regulations and policies applicable to the property as set forth in the Development 

Agreement. A Development Agreement shall not prevent the City from denying or conditionally 

approving any subsequent land use permit or authorization for the project on the basis of such 

existing or new rules, regulations, and policies.  

3. Unless otherwise specified in the Development Agreement, a Development Agreement 

shall not exempt the applicant from obtaining future discretionary land use approvals.  

B. Rules Affecting Development Agreement. In the event that any regulation or law of the 

State of California or the United States, enacted or interpreted after a Development Agreement 

has been entered into, prevents or precludes compliance with one or more provisions of the 

Development Agreement, the Development Agreement may be modified or suspended in the 

manner and pursuant to the procedures specified in the Development Agreement as may be 

necessary to comply with such regulation or law.  

C. Enforcement of a Development Agreement. The procedures for enforcement, 

amendment, modification, cancellation or termination of a Development Agreement specified in 

this section and in California Government Code Section 65865.4 are non-exclusive. A 

Development Agreement may be enforced, amended, modified, canceled or terminated by any 

manner otherwise provided by law or by the provisions of the Development Agreement.  

8.G

Packet Pg. 82



Development Agreement Ordinance  
September 26, 2019 
 
D. Judicial Review – Time Limitation. 

1. Any judicial review of an ordinance approving or amending a Development Agreement 

shall be by writ of mandate pursuant to Section 1085 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. 

Judicial review of any City action taken pursuant to this chapter, other than approval or 

amendment of a Development Agreement, shall be by writ of mandate pursuant to Section 

1094.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  

2. Any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul any decision of the 

City taken pursuant to this chapter shall not be maintained by any person unless the action or 

proceeding is commenced within 90 days after the effective date of the decision.  

E. Irregularity in Proceedings. No action, inaction or recommendation regarding a proposed 

Development Agreement shall be held void or invalid or be set aside by a court by reason of any 

error, irregularity, informality, neglect or omission ("error") as to any matter pertaining to the 

petition, application, notice, finding, record, hearing, report, recommendation or any matter of 

procedure whatever, unless the error complained of was prejudicial and that by reason of the 

error, the complaining party sustained and suffered substantial injury, and that a different result 

would have been probable if the error had not occurred or existed. There is not a presumption 

that an error is prejudicial or that injury was done if an error is shown.” 

 
Section 3. COMPLIANCE WITH CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA). 
The City Council hereby finds that the action to adopt this ordinance will not result in any 
change in the environment and thus is not a project subject to the requirements of CEQA.  
 
Section 4. SEVERABILITY. 
The City Council hereby declares every section, paragraph, sentence, cause, and phrase of this 
ordinance is severable. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance 
is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality 
shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses, or phrases. 
 
Section 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from its passage and adoption. 
 
This ordinance was introduced on the 12th day of September, 2019, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 26th day of September, 2019, by the 
following vote:   
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

8.G

Packet Pg. 83



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Report Regarding Residency Requirements for Planning Commission 

and City Advisory Board Membership  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction regarding residency 
requirements for Planning Commission and City advisory bodies. 
 
BACKGROUND: In 1951, Capitola established a Planning Commission and over time the City 

created, amended, and dissolved a number of other advisory bodies. In 1999, the then-City 

Attorney wrote a memo stating that the Capitola Municipal Code does not include a residency 

requirement for members of the Planning Commission based on the 2.12 Planning Commission 

code section. (Attachment 1). 

In 2000, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 823, which repealed language requiring 

residency for “boards and commissions” memberships, prohibited City staff from serving on 

committees, and set forth general duties for all advisory board members (formerly Sections 

2.04.030, 2.04.040, and 2.04.050 of the Capitola Municipal Code). (Attachments 2 and 3.) The 

reasoning behind the repeal is not contained in the record. 

The November 29, 2000, meeting minutes for the hearing where the ordinance was introduced 

included a request for the City Attorney to return with an ordinance or resolution requiring 

residency for the Planning Commission and Finance Advisory Commission (FAC). (Attachment 

4.)  

In 2001, Section 2.40 of the Capitola Municipal Code was again revised with Ordinance No. 830 

to allow advisory bodies to be formed by ordinance, resolution, or minutes action, but residency 

was not addressed (Attachment 5). A residency requirement was eventually added to the FAC 

by resolution in 2009. The FAC is currently the only advisory body with a residency requirement 

for some members. The record is not clear about why Planning Commission residency is not 

addressed in Ordinance 830, or if it was discussed and ultimately not included in the adopted 

Ordinance.  

In Fall 2018, the City Clerk’s Office issued notices recruiting for advisory bodies including the 

Planning Commission and received an application for the Planning Commission from a non-

City-resident who works in the City as a design professional. Staff researched the requirements 

for membership and confirmed that a nonresident could be appointed. The applicant’s residency 

outside the City was listed on the application included in the December 13, 2018, agenda 

packet. That applicant was appointed to the Planning Commission on December 13.  

In August 2019, another Planning Commissioner questioned the appointment of a nonresident 

9.A

Packet Pg. 84



Commission Residency Report  
September 26, 2019 
 
to the Commission. City Council has received public communication since then, with some 

emails supporting residency requirements for all advisory bodies and others focusing on 

residency requirements for the Planning Commission (Attachment 6). At the August 22 meeting, 

Council Member Sam Storey requested that a report on the history and best practices be 

presented to Council. 

 

DISCUSSION: Over the years, the City Council has appointed numerous members of the 

greater community to serve on various City boards and commissions. Following is a summary of 

current advisory body membership and recent recruitment efforts. 

• Art and Cultural Commission: This commission currently has one nonresident. Recent 

artist and at-large member recruitments have remained open for several months. 

• Commission on the Environment: One current Council appointee is a nonresident but is 

a local business owner.  That recruitment had to be continued as there were not enough 

applicants by the deadline. 

• Finance Advisory Commission: Residency has been required for Council appointees 

since 2009. The recent recruitment was extended since there were not enough 

applicants to fill the resident seats when Council made its appointments. The 

Commission includes one seat for a Capitola business person, who does not have to 

reside in the City. 

• Architectural and Site Committee: None of the required professional members are City 

residents. 

• Historical Museum Board: Of the seven trustees, four are non-residents and a fifth lists 

two addresses, one local and one not. The recent recruitment had to be extended to fill 

openings. 

• Planning Commission: There is currently one Planning Commissioner who resides in 

Pleasure Point and works in the City. In 2016, Council members accepted additional 

applications after the deadline to broaden the applicant pool. 

 

Additionally, during discussion of youth membership on advisory bodies in 2017, the Council 

opted to allow youth from nearby high schools and throughout the Soquel Union Elementary 

School District area to serve, rather than limit those positions to City residents. 

Capitola is a relatively small city and has a history of extending recruitments to get a sufficient 

applicant pool. At times, the lack of a full board has made it more difficult to establish a quorum 

and led to canceled meeting in some cases.  

Planning Commission Appointments: State Government Code 65100 authorizes cites to create 

a planning commission with at least five members. However, the code also allows that function 

to be filled by the city council or the staff planning department and does not require residency. 

Based on 34 survey responses, most cities appear to have a Planning Commission residency 

requirement. Two cities that responded, Los Altos Hills and Ojai, do not have a residency 

requirement.  

Cities do not take a uniform approach to Planning Commission membership and appointments. 

Some cities require residency or for applicants to be registered voters. Some, such as Chula 

Vista, specifically seek a background in architecture or planning from at least a portion of the 

members. Others, such as Emeryville, require Planning Commissioners to either live or work in 

the city. Additionally, more cities make full council appointments or approve the mayors’ 

9.A

Packet Pg. 85



Commission Residency Report  
September 26, 2019 
 
nominees rather than having individual council members directly appoint a planning 

commissioner. Capitola used a Mayor-nomination/Council approval process to select Planning 

Commission members until 1978.  

While understanding what other cities do is informative, the key question for City Council is what 

is the best process for Capitola, and what are the goals and benefits of a residency requirement 

versus other approaches.  

Along with attracting applicants with appropriate backgrounds or interests, city clerks are 

encouraged at professional trainings to ensure their cities recruit applicants that reflect the 

diversity of the local population. Ideally, all advisory bodies would include members of varying 

ages, genders, and cultures. Under Capitola’s approach of individually appointed Planning 

Commission members, that responsibility falls to each Council Member.  

Factors for consideration: 

• 32 of the 34 cities who responded to the surveys have a residency requirement for 
Planning Commission.  In at least one case, a city that has a residency requirement may 
waive it if applicants work in the City. Cities may also require some members to hold 
certain professional certifications. 

• If Council directs staff to change residency requirements, staff recommends that change 
take effect upon the end of existing terms, following the 2020 elections. 

• A blanket residency requirement for all Capitola advisory boards and commissions would 
result in the disqualification of a number of current, active volunteers and likely lead to 
increased recruitment challenges. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. City Attorney letter PC residency 
2. Ordinance 823 (2000) 
3. Ordinance 375 excerpt (1974) 
4. 11-29-2000 minutes excerpt 
5. Ordinance 830 (2001) 
6. Public comment 

 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 86



 Office of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA            CITY ATTORNEY 

===============================================================

= 

 

MEMO TO:  Pam Greeninger, City Clerk 

 

FROM:  Richard Manning, City Attorney 

 

DATE:  September 1, 1999 

 

SUBJECT:  PLANNING COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

I have been asked whether there are any residency requirements for 

Planning Commissioners in the City of Capitola.  The answer is “no”. 

 

State law, Government Code Section 65102 specifically, vests complete 

authority in the City Council to establish the qualifications for planning 

commissioners.  It says, “A legislative body may establish for its 

planning agency any rules, procedures, or standards which do not 

conflict with state or federal laws.” 

 

The pertinent Capitola Municipal Code provisions are found in Chapter 2.12 

(copy attached).  There are no residency requirements therein, so none exist. 

 

RMM/pam 

 

cc:  Council Member Bruce Arthur 

 Kathleen Molloy/Eric Marlatt 

 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
 le

tt
er

 P
C

 r
es

id
en

cy
  (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)



I

I

^s

I

2022

ORDINANCE NO. 823

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA

REPEALING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 2.04.030,2.04.040, AND
2.04.050 REGARDING BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA HEREBY ORDAINS AS

FOLLOWS:

Municipal Code Sections 2.04.030, 2.04.040, and 2.04.050 are repealed in their entirety.

This ordinance was introduced on the 29l day of November, 2000, and passed and adopted

on the 14 day of December, 2000, by the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Ortiz, Gualtieri, Harlan, Arthur and Mayor Norton

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

CMC/AAE

Dennis R. Norton, Mayor

This is to certify that the above and foregoing is
is the original document: Ordinance No. 823 and
that it has been published or posted pursuant to
law. (California Government Code § 40806)

9.A.2

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
23

 (
20

00
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

643 A

#

ORDINANCE NO. 37$

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF

THE CITY OF CAPITOLA ADOPTING A PLAN

FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola is desirous of

promoting the orderly business of the City of Capitola;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

CAPITOLA DOES ORDAIN that the following Administrative Organization

is hereby adopted by and is binding upon the City of Capitola:

ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION

The governmental forces of the city shall be organized into the following
departmental and official categories and the head of each department or office
shall be known by his respective title as shown:

Legislative

DEPARTMENT OR OFFICE

City Council

Office of the City Manager
Office of City Clerk
Office of City Attorney
Office of City Treasure

Admi ni s tra tive

TITLE

Mayor

City Manager
City Clerk

City Attorney
City Treasurer

Public Works and Utilities

Department of Public Works

Department of Police
Department of Fire
Department of Health

Public Safety

Director of Public Works

Chief of Police

Capitola Fire Protection District
Santa Cruz County Department
of Public Health

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 3
75

 e
xc

er
p

t 
(1

97
4)

  (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



•

I

I

B

Powers and Duties of Department Heads

The heads of the various departments established by this ordinance
shall have the following general powers, duties and responsibilities:

(a) To organize the department into the divisions established by this
chapter in such a manner as to efficiently perform the functional responsibili
ties allocated. For this purpose, the department head may create such sections
and sub-units within such division as deemed necessary.

(b) To make recommendations regarding recruiting, disciplining and
discharging of departmental personnel in accordance with the personnel rules
and regulations of the city.

(c) To transfer or reallocate personnel from one division to another
in accordance with their respective needs, and best usage of available man
power.

(d) To keep correct attendance records on each employee for payroll
purposes, and to submit such other information as required for the proper
maintenance of individual personnel records, including leaves of absence, job
efficiency and personal conduct.

(e) To administer the departmental budget and permit no purchase
requisitions to be issued, or other expense incurred, unless an appropriation
therefor has been duly authorized.

(f) Department heads shall attend meetings of the council when
required.

(g) Department heads shall attend meetings of their respective boards
and commissions, and represent the city manager thereon in case of his
absence. They shall serve as secretary and keep records of such commissions
when so requested.

(h) Department heads shall carry on an active public relations program
for their respective services, including the publication of educational reports
and brochures, the promotion of authorized objectives, and the making of
public addresses when the occasion so requires.

(i) Department heads shall promulgate and administer internal rules
and regulations for the proper conduct of personnel and the efficient handling
of the department's duties and functions.

(j) They shall discharge such other duties as may be assigned by the
city manager or required by the ordinances, resolutions or official orders of
the city council.

Boards and Commissions E stabli shment

The following boards and commissions are hereby establis

Name Oo ,/\o'A\£e£*- ' Members

ission

REPEALED
BY ORDINANACf : .6»2) -

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 3
75

 e
xc

er
p

t 
(1

97
4)

  (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

3C

Bond

REPEALED
BY ORDINANACE • X^Jr , a,
DATED J2g£&»b*rj£-. *£&P

Qualifications and Terms of Members

All members of boards and4^qa^^^i^itSiSrtt~t5e__a—resident of
the City of Capitola. Noper^ruar-s^ra^TDeTappointed to a board or commission
who h^Wj^^-ny^-striSTrTeTrjob or employment with the City of Capitola.

Powers and Duties of Members

The boards and commissions shall have the following general power^
duties and responsibilities:

(a) To utilize all appropriate techniques in crystallizing sfnd testing
public sentiment on major public issues in their respective fields.

(b) To hold official hearings as requested by tkecity council.

(c) To advise and recommend on ai/nj^pdlicies and procedures pertinent
to their respective activities and fuacti

(d) To support and adherejroall city policies promulgated by the
council, and to establish interyaripolicies in the absence of such city policies.

(e) To provide information and promote good public relations between
the city and the general public.

(f) T^Tperform such other related functions as may be assigned by
the cityjxmncil.

May Utilize Services of City Personnel

The various boards and commissions may utilize the services of the
appropriate city departmental personnel in carrying out their respective
functions subject to the administrative control of the city manager.

City Policies

(a) The policies of the city shall be adopted by resolution or formal
motions of the city council upon the advice and recommendation of the city
manager.

(b) In the absence of council policy, the city manager may establish
an interim policy pending the formal action of the city council on the subject.

Officers to be Bonded; Amount

The following officials of the city shall be bonded with a statutory public
official's bond, which shall include faithful performance provisions or conditions,
in the following amounts:

Title of Official

City Clerk
City Treasurer

Amount of Bond

$50, 000. 00
$50, 000. 00

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 3
75

 e
xc

er
p

t 
(1

97
4)

  (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

1 '

643 P
4 » j,« ' I

(1) ANIMAL REGULATION. Enforce the city ordinance pertaining
to animal regulation and control;

(2) STRAY ANIMALS. Impound stray animals;

(3) DEAD AND INJURED ANIMALS. Remove and dispose of dead
and injured animals from streets or public places.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing ordinance was passed and

adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held

on the 15tt day of May , 1974, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmen Dixon, Graves, Mason, Routh and Mayor Nelson.

NOES: None-

ABSENT: None.

ATTEST: ^jULt^-i-LaJ j£\ "7U^U->^
City Clerk

16.

Mayor

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 3
75

 e
xc

er
p

t 
(1

97
4)

  (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
29

-2
00

0 
m

in
u

te
s 

ex
ce

rp
t 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

1-
29

-2
00

0 
m

in
u

te
s 

ex
ce

rp
t 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

2041

ORDINANCE NO. 830

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL

OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING CHAPTER 2.04 OF THE

CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING

CITY'S DEPARTMENTS ORGANIZATION

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA HEREBY ORDAINS AS

FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Sections 2.04.010, 2.04.020, 2.04.030, 2.04.080, 2.04.110, 2.04.140, 2.04.180,
2.04.190, 2.04.240, 2.04.280, 2.04.310, and 2.04.600 of the Municipal Code shall be amended or
added to read as follows:

I. ORGANIZATION

2.04.010. Categories. The governmental forces of the city shall be organized into the
following categories.

A. Elective. The elective offices of the City of Capitola are: the City Council members
and City Treasurer.

B. Such city boards and commissions as are established by City Council ordinance or
resolution. Such boards and commissions shall have the powers and duties expressly set forth in
the enabling ordinance or resolution and shall also advise the City Council on matters related to
the explicit function of the board or commission.

C. City Manager and city departments. Capitola shall be administered as a City Manager
form of government. It shall have such administrative departments as are set forth in this chapter
and as are hereafter created by ordinance or resolution. Unless a power or duty is explicitly
vested in an identified city employee, all city employees are expected to function in accordance
with the instruction of their department heads, and department heads are expected to function in
accordance with the instructions they receive from the City Manager.

2.04.020 Powers and duties of department heads. The heads of the various departments
established by this chapter shall have the following general powers, duties and responsibilities:

A. To organize the department into the divisions established by this chapter in such a
manner as to efficiently perform the functional responsibilities allocated. For this purpose, the
department head may create such sections and subunits within such division as deemed
necessary;

B. To make recommendations regarding recruiting, disciplining and discharging of
departmental personnel in accordance with any personnel rules and regulations of the city;

C. To efficiently utilize available manpower;

9.A.5

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
30

 (
20

01
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



2042 ORDINANCE NO. 830

D. To keep correct attendance records on each employee for payroll purposes, and to
submit such other information as required for the proper maintenance of individual personnel
records, including leaves of absence, job efficiency and personal conduct;

E. To administer the departmental budget and permit no purchase requisitions to be
issued, or other expense incurred, unless an appropriations thereforhas been duly authorized;

F. Department heads shall attend meetings of the council when required;

G. Department heads shall attend meetings of their respective boards and commissions.
They shall serve as secretary and keep records of such commissions when so requested;

H. Department heads shall carry on an active public relations program for their
respective services, including the publication of educational reports and brochures, the
promotion of authorized objectives, and the making of public addresses when the occasion so
requires;

I. Department heads shall recommend and administer internal rules and regulations for
the proper conduct of personnel and the efficient handling of the department's duties and
functions;

J. They shall discharge such other duties as may be assigned by the city manager or
required by the ordinances, resolutions or official orders of the city council.

H. CITY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS POLICIES

2.04.030 The Council may establish appropriate boards, commissions, and committees
by ordinance, resolution, or minute order.

2.04.040 [Reserved]
D3. BONDS

2.04.080 Officers. The following officials of the city shall be bonded with a statutory
public official's bond, which shall include faithful performance provisions or conditions, in the
following amounts:

Title of Official Amount of Bond

Director of Finance $50,000
City treasurer $50,000

IV. CITY COUNCIL

2.04.110 Regular meetings. A. Time. Regular meetings of the city council shall be
held on the second and fourth Thursday of each month at seven (7:00) p.m. Whenever the day
fixed for any such meeting of the council falls upon a day designated by law as a legal or
national holiday, such meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next succeeding day not a
holiday. Other regular meetings may be in accordance with Government Code Sections 54954
and 54955.

I

I

I

9.A.5

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
30

 (
20

01
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

ORDINANCE NO. 830 2043

B. Place. All meetings of the council shall be convened in the council chambers in the
city hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. If, by reason of fire, flood, earthquake or
other emergency, it is unsafe to meet in the place designated, the meetings may be held for the
duration of the emergency at such place as is designated by the presiding officer of the council.

C. Public. Meetings of the council shall be open as required by the Brown Act
(Government Code Sections 54950, et. seq.), or other applicable law.

2.04.120 Special meetings. Special meetings of the city council shall be held under the
conditions and in the manner set forth in the Brown Act.

2.04.140 Agenda. The following have authority to place a matter on the council agenda:

A. The Mayor

B. The City Manager

C. The City Council may, after the 72-hour agenda-posting deadline has expired, add
items to the agenda in the manner provided in Government Code Section 54954.2(b). A majority
of a quorum of the City Council may order that any designated matter be on any future agenda.

D. The chair of any board or commission, provided the subject is reasonably related to
the powers and duties of the body and concerns a matter upon which the Council has authority to
act.

E. The City Treasurer, City Clerk, or City Attorney, provided the subject is reasonably
related to their powers and duties and concerns a subject upon which the Council has authority to
act.

Other persons must direct their agenda requests to the City Council (at Council
meetings), the Mayor, or the City Manager. Agendas shall otherwise be prepared under the
direction of the City Manager and shall be posted, noticed and distributed in accordance with the
Brown Act. For purposes of Government Code Section 54954.2(a), agendas shall be posted in
the entrance area to the City Council Chambers.

2.04.180 Quorum/Action. A majority of the entire membership of the council shall
constitute a quorum to do business. A majority of that quorum may act on matters before the
Council, unless a city ordinance or state law requires a greater number. When less than the full
Council is present and there is a tie vote, the chair, unless overridden by a majority of present
Council members, may continue the matter to another meeting. When there is a tie Council vote
on an appeal from a board or commission action, unless the matter is continued, the appeal will
be deemed denied and the board or commission action becomes final.

2.04.190 Order of business. The chair, subject to the concurrence of the council, may
vary the sequence of business from that shown on the posted agenda.

9.A.5

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
30

 (
20

01
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



2044 ORDINANCE NO. 830

2.04.240 Addressing council—Manner. Each person addressing the council shall be
requested to give his or her name and address in an audible tone of voice for the records. All
remarks shall be addressed to the council as a body and not to any member thereof. No person,
other than the council and person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into any
discussion, either directly or through a member of the council, without permission of the
presiding officer. No question shall be asked a councilman or staff member^ except through the
presiding officer.

2.04.260 Adjournment-time and date continued. The council may adjourn any regular,
adjourned or special meeting to a time and place specified in the order for adjournment.
Whenever an order for adjournment fails to state the hour at which the adjourned meeting is to
be held, it shall be at seven p.m. on the day specified in the order for adjournment. All matters
may be considered and passed upon at such adjourned meetings as could have been considered
and passed upon at the meetings from which such adjournments were taken and shall be deemed
to be a continuation of the meeting from which the adjournment was taken.

2.04.280 Administrative procedures. A. The administrative procedures of the city shall
be established through formal documents approved by the City Manager.

B. In the absence of established administrative procedures, the appropriate department
head may establish an interim procedure pending the formal action of the city manager on the
subject provided that the procedure has been submitted to the City Manager's office for later
review.

C. In cases of conflict between such administrative procedure and: state law, federal
law, Council resolution, Council ordinance, or Council policy adopted pursuant to Section
2.04.070, the latter shall supersede the administrative procedure.

VI. CITY CLERK

2.04.310 Office created. The office of city clerk is established pursuant to Government
Code Sections 40800 through 40814 subject to the modifications set forth in Section 2.04.600.
This office shall be under the direct control of the city clerk as to statutory duties but subject to
the general administrative direction of the city manager.

X. DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

2.04.600 Powers and duties. The powers and duties of the Director of Finance are as
follows:

A. With respect to the City's accounting and necessarily related matters, the Director of
Finance shall act within the official and professional rules of his or her profession and may not
be directed to act contrary to those rules.

B. The Director of Finance prepares, or supervises preparation of, the City and
Redevelopment Agency's annual financial report(s); oversees annual independent audits; and
interfaces with independent auditor(s).

I

I

I

9.A.5

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
30

 (
20

01
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



I

I

I

ORDINANCE NO. 830 2045

C. The Director of Finance conducts, directs and/or oversees all investigative and
corrective accounting projects.

D. As requested by them, the Director of Finance advises and consults with the City
Treasurer and Redevelopment Agency Treasurer on accounting and financial matters relative to
their offices. The Director of Finance is not staff to either the City Treasurer or the
Redevelopment Agency Treasurer, but works closely with and assists both officers.

E. "Finance" and "financial" primarily refers to accounting, reporting and information
management aspects of City/Agency fiscal activities and procedures related to those activities. It
does not include providing advice as to the social desirability of any proposed expenditure over
another.

F. Pursuant to Government Code Section 37209, the Director of Finance shall have the
powers and duties otherwise vested in the City Clerk under Government Code Sections 37203,
37205, 37207, 37208, 40802 and 40804.

Section 2. Sections 2.04.400, 2.04.410, 2.04.420, 2.04.430, 2.04.440, 2.04.470,
2.04.480, 2.04.490, 2.04.500, 2.04.510, 2.04.520, and 2.04.530 of the Municipal Code shall be
repealed in their entirety.

This ordinance was introduced on the 12th day of July, 2001, and passed and adopted by the
City Council ofthe City ofCapitola on the 26th day of July, 2001 by the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Ortiz, Arthur and Mayor Norton

NOES: None

ABSENT: Council Members Gualtieri and Harlan

ABSTAIN: None

ATTEST:

(Lo^jjfoo <CMC

Pamela Greeninger, City(Clerk

APPROVED

Dennis R. Norton, Mayor

This is to certify that the above and foregoing is
the original document: Ordinance No. 830, and
that it has been published or posted pursuant to
law. (California Government Code §40806)

a^r-r^eJli^-J

Cityof Capitola, C/tyClerk

9.A.5

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 8
30

 (
20

01
) 

 (
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

es
id

en
cy

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 
To: Capitola City Council 
From: 2000 City Council 
Re: Appointments to Planning Commission 
Sept. 3, 2019 
 
Dear Council, 
 
It has come to our attention that the records indicate that our council voted to cease residency 
requirement for Planning Commissioners. 
 
We recall the discussion where we decided to allow applicants from outside the city to apply for 
lesser boards and commissions but to disallow those for the Planning Commission and Finance 
Committee. 
 
It is obvious that we did not look closely enough at the draft ordinance regarding this matter 
and passed it in error. 
 
We would respectfully ask that you draft a new ordinance requiring that all Planning 
Commissioner reside in Capitola.  The council should decide whether to make this change now 
or after the next election. 
 
We hope you agree. 
 
Our sincere thanks for your service, 
 
Bruce Arthur, Gayle Ortiz, Tony Gualtieri, Stephanie Harlan and Dennis Norton 
  

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)



pacpubs@attglobal.net 

Planning Commission Residency Requirement Reinstatement 

From Lynne Ann Dispellers 

11 September 2019 

  

Subject: Composition of Planning Commission (PC) limited to Capitola Residents 

  

At the last council meeting, residency requirements for the Planning Commission were 

brought to my attention by Stephanie Harlan. After listening to statements that all 

members seated met requirements in our city ordinances, I asked Linda Friday to 

research how that might have come to be. 

  

Since that time, it is clear that there was a snafu in the council/staff procedures to retain 

residency requirements. I believe that you now have the relevant materials to determine 

what happened and to reinstate the residency requirements on the PC. 

  

I urge you to support Councilwoman Brooks in finding a suitable resident to replace her 

original selection of a PC member who does not live in Capitola. This replacement 

should occur as soon as possible. 

  

With such large development projects (The Mall and the Village Hotel) in the work of the 

PC at present, I believe that decisions need to be made by members from our 

community. 

  

Sincerely, Lynne 

  

 Lynne Ann DeSpelder 

post office box 1150 

Capitola, California 95010 USA 

831-476-8284 [PDT] 

pacpubs@attglobal.net 

Last Dance 10e Website 

 
 
JOAN STEELE danjobry@aol.com 
Planning commissioners not living in Capitola 
 
Dear Capitola City Council, 
 
Please do not allow anyone who does not live in Capitola to serve on the planning commission. This is 
OUR precious town and only Capitola residents should be making any decisions for our community. 
 
Thank you, 
Joan Steele 
Capitola property owner and resident. 
 

 

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)

https://maps.google.com/?q=%20Capitola%20California%2095010%20US
https://maps.google.com/?q=%20Capitola%20California%2095010%20US
mailto:pacpubs@attglobal.net
mailto:pacpubs@attglobal.net
http://highered.mheducation.com/sites/0078035465/information_center_view0/index.html
http://highered.mheducation.com/sites/0078035465/information_center_view0/index.html


Marilee Werfhorst marileewhite1@aol.com 

Residents on planning commission 

 

Only Capitola residents please 
 

 

Sandra Russell sandrakayrussell@icloud.com 

Planning commissioners 

Yes, all should be capitola residents. Correct the glitch legally.  
 

 

Patricia Alvarez pcat1828@gmail.com 

Planning Commission 

 

Hello, 
I am a Capitola resident and believe that only residents should be allowed to serve on the Planning 
Commission. 
Thanks, 
Pat Alvarez 
 

 

Dale Benedix <reachdale7@yahoo.com> 

Planning Comission 

 

Could you comment about someone’s assertion that non residents may serve on the planning 

commission? 

If this is the case, it needs to be rectified immediately. Grandfather in any current nonresident members 

to serve the remainder of their term, but Capitola needs local interests only.  

Thank you, 

Dale Benedix  

Capitola.  

 

Linda Daly ldaly0801@gmail.com 

Capitola 

Only residents of Capitola should decide the future of Capitola our beautiful little town by the sea, not 
someone from Fresno! This little error needs to be corrected! 
 
Best regards, 
Linda Daly  
  

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)

mailto:ldaly0801@gmail.com
mailto:ldaly0801@gmail.com


Anthony Rovai ARovai@moneyconcepts.com 

Please  require Planning Commissioners to be residents of Capitola. 

Dear Council Members, 

Please require Planning Commissioners to be residents of Capitola. I would also suggest they are 

property owners for at least 5 years. 

This a very special place to live and has a great culture, I would hate to see big city influences change the 

character of our city.   

Thanks! 

Anthony J. Rovai | Senior Associate 

o: 831.475.3442   direct: 831.475.3442 

w: moneyconcepts.com/arovai 

a: 1715 42nd Ave., Suite C | Capitola, CA 95010 

e: arovai@moneyconcepts.com 

 

 

Robin Hubert robins4dogs@gmail.com 

change the law 

Dear City Council - I want to throw my hat in the ring and say it's time to change the law/rule so that 
ONLY Capitola residents can serve on the planning commission.  We need people who live here 
permanently year round and love this community to be the only ones to make decisions regarding it's 
development.  What has been allowed to date is a tragedy.  Thank you.  Robin Hubert 
 
Kyle Catterlin catterlinguitar@gmail.com 

Vote no on non resident planning commission members 

 

Please add my no vote to allow non residents to serve on the planning commision. (or any other city 
post for that matter) 
 
Kyle Catterlin 
4425 Clares St. #86 
Capitola, CA 95010 
 

 

 

Randall Leonard randallsc@cruzio.com 

Planning Commission. 

 

I live in the Opal Cliffs subdivision up against the City limits. But I do believe 

that people on the Planning Commission and other appointed positions should 

live (full time for real) in Capitola.  Thank you, Randall Leonard 

randallsc@cruzio.com 

4155 Nova Drive 

Santa Cruz, Ca 95062  

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)



chewaka9@gmail.com 

To whom it may concern, 

 I have lived in Santa Cruz for over 30 years. I have seen it change for the worst sadly. It’s now a 

little San Jose/LA rat race. Heart breaking for many of us, who believe money is not King. Some 

of us want to keep it small and kind here, like back in the day.  Remember that? 

Why are “non-residents” allowed to make decisions about how things are run,  where things 

are going to be built ect.. due to an old error made? Please do tell. I say correct it. Locals are 

trying to hold on to the soul of our community. We don’t want everything faster, bigger and 

more built up. In my youth, I grew up in Cambria Ca. That town will not let people just build and 

build, they don’t have the resources. Mainly due to water issues. Not enough. 

I  have spoken with many, many long time locals whom feel deeply upset about how our town 

is changing. How money is moving in and eating at the heart of our town. Progress is what the 

transplants call it. Greed is another word, one might use. Think, act, be brave. Keep our town 

real please.  

 

Randi O’brien tolagirl2@icloud.com 

Residency 

Please correct the error allowing non-residents to me members of the Capitola Board. 
 
Randi O’Brien 
 
 

Lynn Yocum lynnyocum@hotmail.com 

Non-Capitola residents serving on the planning commission 

I agree.  Please correct this error.  We shouldn’t have to write an email asking to have this error 
corrected.  It should have been corrected when it was discovered.  Also, the appointee should have 
realized that a non-resident shouldn’t be allowed to decide what Capitola residents can do with their 
property.   

 

Patsy Ross patsy@christopherranch.com 

Capitola Residency for City Council and Planning Commission 

It has been brought to our attention that a current Planning Commission member is NOT a resident of 

Capitola.  This is not right, how can someone who doesn’t live on our special place really make decisions 

in the best interest of us? 

Please remedy this as soon as possible. 

Capitola Residency for City Council and Planning Commission 

Sincerely, 

Steve & Patsy Ross 

218 El Camino Medio St. 

Capitola, CA  95010 

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)



Molly Ording mollyording@yahoo.com 

Planning Commissioner Position 

 

Good Gorgeous Capitola Labor Day!  (Thank you for ALLl you do to help keep our community beautiful and 

charming!) 

Just a note to weigh in regarding the Planning Commission position, with the caveat that this is in NO way 

politically motivated or intended to be personal in any way…but when I heard about the Planning 

Commission member not being a resident, I immediately personally reflected on this question.  After thinking 

about it I realized that I (as interested in Santa Cruz or others towns’ local politics and planning as I am…) 

would not feel it appropriate for me to serve on a planning body without being a resident.  Seems 

inappropriate for me, or anyone, to make decisions for communities without a history of residence and 

community involvement and awareness, a net work of friends and neighbors and a time in residence to learn 

and reflect on local issues.  Actually seems kind of like a “no brainer” to me!  Am sure this was an oversight 

and that the appointee and her Councilwoman would concur.  Not a political issue at all...just a policy issue 

that needs to be amended or changed! 

Thanks, as always, for your attention and time! 

Cheers! 

Molly Ording 

 

Patricia Fox pitterfox@yahoo.com 

planning commission 

Please make all members of the planning commission be city residences. 
 

 

9.A.6

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 R
es

id
en

cy
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Receive a Presentation from the Monterey Regional Waste Management District 

to Begin Negotiations for a Long-Term Agreement for Disposal and Recycling 
Processing  

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Direct staff to negotiate a new Waste Disposal Agreement with 
Monterey Regional Waste Management District for solid waste disposal and recycling 
processing and to reopen the Refuse, Recycling and Yard Waste Services Franchise 
Agreement with Green Waste Recovery, Inc., to account for the new disposal rates. 
 
BACKGROUND: Solid waste collection, recycling, and disposal for the City is completed 

through two contracts. Since the 1990s, solid waste processing, and more recently yard and 

organic waste processing, is provided through a contract with Monterey Regional Waste 

Management District (Monterey Regional) located in Marina. The current agreement was 

entered into in 2010 (Attachment 1). Collection and recycling services are provided by 

GreenWaste Recovery, Inc. (GreenWaste) through a franchise agreement that was first 

approved in 2008 (Attachment 2). Both contracts ensure the city is in compliance with State 

requirements and regulations. Under the terms of both agreements, the disposal fees paid per 

ton of waste brought to the Monterey Regional landfill are paid by GreenWaste, which then 

collects from city residential and commercial customers based on rates approved annually by 

the City Council.  

Pursuant to the terms in the agreement with Monterey Regional, the City received notice in 

2017 that the existing agreement would be terminated in 2022 due to mandated changes in the 

way solid waste is processed. The changes require new technologies and processing in order to 

increase the amount of waste being diverted from the landfill. These changes were not 

anticipated in the original agreement. At the time of the notice, Monterey Regional informed City 

staff that it was the district’s intention to continue to offer disposal services to the City, but under 

a new agreement. The notice is included as Attachment 3. 

 

DISCUSSION: Monterey Regional was established to provide solid waste services for the 

greater Monterey Peninsula area including the cities of Carmel-by-the-Sea, Del Rey Oaks, 

Marina, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside, and the unincorporated areas of Big Sur, 

Carmel Highlands, Carmel Valley, Castroville, Corral De Tierra, Laguna Seca, Moss Landing, 

Pebble Beach, San Benancio, and Toro Park. The Board of Directors for Monterey Regional are 

made up of officials from these member jurisdictions who establish the rates paid for disposal 

and recycling through their facility.  

9.B

Packet Pg. 106



Solid Waste Program Update  
September 26, 2019 
 
As part of the initial meetings with Monterey Regional about a potential new contract, the 

General Manager has indicated that the City of Capitola would be charged the same rates as 

member agencies under a new agreement. Currently the City pays lower disposal rates than 

Monterey Regional member agencies. 

State regulations requiring increased diversion of organic waste (unused food materials) and a 

decline in the market of recycled products, especially plastic, has greatly impacted the 

operations of Monterey Regional and other landfills and require changes to the current 

agreement. In order the meet these new regulations, Monterey Regional will need to build new 

facilities and begin charging for recycling services.  

Tim Flanagan, general manager of Monterey Regional, will provide an update on the solid waste 

business and regulations at the Council meeting. 

As the rates at the landfill increase, the rates city customers pay will need to be adjusted 

accordingly. GreenWaste has performed an initial analysis of the impact of the projected rate 

increases at Monterey Regional. Residential rates, which include trash, recycling, and yard 

waste, are projected to increase by up to 15 percent. Staff anticipates that Capitola still will have 

the lowest residential trash, recycling, and yard waste rates in Santa Cruz County. 

Commercial trash rates are also anticipated to increase by a similar amount.  Due to changes in 

recycling markets and State organics diversion requirements, commercial trash rates will no 

longer include recycling and food waste (organics). Commercial customers will pay additional 

fees for mandatory recycling and commercial food waste disposal.  

As part of the negotiating process with Monterey Regional, the City hopes that the increases in 

the rates can be implemented over the remaining two years of the existing agreement. As the 

negotiations with Monterey Regional are being finalized, it will be necessary for the City to then 

amend the franchise agreement with GreenWaste and negotiate rate changes for its services. 

At the same time, staff will look to extend the franchise agreement to coincide with the County of 

Santa Cruz’s agreement with GreenWaste and also change the annual term of the agreement to 

a fiscal year instead of the calendar year. 

City staff has been a participant on the Santa Cruz County Solid Waste Task Force, which has 

worked to identify organics and recycling solutions within the County. Unfortunately, there is no 

local option for organics processing in Santa Cruz County. Monterey Regional remains the most 

viable and affordable option for the City of Capitola. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The cost of any increases in disposal and recycling fees resulting from a new 

agreement with Monterey Regional will be passed on to GreenWaste and ultimately paid by 

residents and businesses of the City. The City does mandate that all residents and businesses 

have garbage service.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Monterey_Regional_Waste_Management_District_8-1-10 
2. Green Wate Recovery Refuse_Recycing_Yard_Waste_Francise_Agreement_4-24-08 
3. Capitola_30-Day_Notice_Agmt_Termination817 

 
Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

9.B

Packet Pg. 107



Solid Waste Program Update  
September 26, 2019 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 108



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.1

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y_
R

eg
io

n
al

_W
as

te
_M

an
ag

em
en

t_
D

is
tr

ic
t_

8-
1-

10
  (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.2

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

re
en

 W
at

e 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 R
ef

u
se

_R
ec

yc
in

g
_Y

ar
d

_W
as

te
_F

ra
n

ci
se

_A
g

re
em

en
t_

4-
24

-0
8 

 (
S

o
lid

 W
as

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 U
p

d
at

e)



9.B.3

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

_3
0-

D
ay

_N
o

ti
ce

_A
g

m
t_

T
er

m
in

at
io

n
81

7 
 (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



9.B.3

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

_3
0-

D
ay

_N
o

ti
ce

_A
g

m
t_

T
er

m
in

at
io

n
81

7 
 (

S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 U

p
d

at
e)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Update on the Capitola Branch Library Project  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 
 
BACKGROUND: The walls are going up and the library building is taking form. Last week staff 
met with PG&E to start the undergrounding design process. PG&E is now working on design 
details that will be used to construct the underground conduit required for the work. PG&E will 
also be preparing an estimate of costs for the work. Staff is hopeful that undergrounding 
construction can be initiated in early October. Negotiations with the design team regarding 
responsibility for the undergrounding costs will continue once the costs are better established. 

DISCUSSION: The contractor, Otto Construction, has begun construction of the walls and 
structural elements of the building. Roof trusses will begin to be set by the end of September at 
which time all efforts will go toward roof and wall weatherproofing to protect the interior of the 
building as winter nears. 

No additional change orders have been processed in the past two months. Change Order No. 4 
in the amount of $17,674 is in process. This change order is for additional costs for earthwork 
changes related to storm drain systems and handling of unacceptable fill material discovered 
under the old library. Ten contract payments made have been made to date totaling $3,155,838. 

Original Contract Award: $ 12,325,000 
Net Contract Change Order to Date (thru C.O. 3) $ (689,927) 
Current Contract Value $ 11,635,073 
 
Percentage Complete to Date: 28.6% 
 
All change orders issued have followed the adopted Field Order and Change Order Policy 
adopted for this project and no Council action is required at this time. 
 
Construction is currently anticipated to be completed in May 2020 with the opening in mid-
summer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Although the  current contingency is at $838,000, the undergrounding 
estimate of $500,000 and additional extra work items estimated at $250,000 could significantly 
reduce the contigencies. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 

9.C

Packet Pg. 187



Library Update  
September 26, 2019 
 
 Public Works Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 188



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Elimination of Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Capitola Art and Cultural Commission’s recommended 
changes to the bylaws to remove term limits of the commissioners. 
 
BACKGROUND: At its regular meeting on September 10, 2019, the Capitola Art and Cultural 

Commission discussed the removal of term limits from the bylaws of the Commission and voted 

unanimously to recommend the removal of the term limits to retain experienced commissioners.  

A limit of three consecutive terms has been in the bylaws since 2004. Term limits are not 

included in section 2.56 of the Capitola Municipal Code which established the commission. 

DISCUSSION: The Capitola Art and Cultural Commission felt that it was important to have the 

ability to maintain continuity and not to lose those who have experience managing some of the 

events and projects.  In addition, recruiting new commissioners has often been difficult. In 2015, 

the number Art and Cultural Commissioners was reduced from 12 to nine due to difficulty in 

recruitment.  One current commissioner is set to term out at the end of 2019. 

In December 2017, the Commission recommended amending its bylaws and among the 

changes was allowing commissioners to be reappointed after reaching the maximum six years 

(three full terms). That version of the bylaws required a two-year hiatus before reappointment 

and was approved by City Council in January 2018 in Resolution No. 4098. The Commission is 

now recommending removal on the limit of three consecutive terms, which again requires 

Council approval. 

The Commission wants to keep the term appointments at two years so the Commission can 

continue to evaluate applicants and commissioners for appointment by the City Council.  

FISCAL IMPACT: No anticipated fiscal impact. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 189



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.D

Packet Pg. 190



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 
 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

 AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 4098 AND ARTICLE III, SECTION 3 OF THE BYLAWS OF  
THE CAPITOLA ART AND CULTURAL COMMISSION REGARDING TERM LIMITS 

 
 WHEREAS, the bylaws of the Capitola Art and Cultural Commission were last amended 
on January 11, 2018, with the approval of Resolution No. 4098.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, any changes to the Art and Cultural Commission Bylaws must be approved by 
the City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting of September 10, 2019, members of the Art and 
Cultural Commission voted to amend the Commission’s Bylaws to remove any term limit for 
commissioners. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola as 
follows: 
 

1. Resolution No. 4098 is hereby amended and the City of Capitola Art and Cultural 
Commission Bylaws, attached hereto as Exhibit A, are hereby approved. 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 26th day of September, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
 
        _____________________ 
        Jacques Bertrand, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 191



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 Bylaws 
 CAPITOLA ART & CULTURAL COMMISSION 
 City of Capitola, California 
 
 ARTICLE I.  NAME AND AUTHORITY 
 
Section 1.  Name 
 
 The name of this organization shall be the CAPITOLA ART & CULTURAL COMMISSION 
of the City of Capitola, California, hereinafter referred to as the "Commission". 
 
Section 2.  Authority 
 
 The Commission is established pursuant to the authority of Chapter 2.56 of the City of 
Capitola Municipal Code. 
 
 ARTICLE II. POWERS AND DUTIES 
 
 The Capitola Art & Cultural Commission shall have the function and duties set forth in 
Municipal Code Section 2.56.050 and any amendments thereto.  The Municipal Code Section 
currently provides for the following functions and duties: 
 

a. Advise the City Council as to the allocation of public funds for the support and 
encouragement of existing and new programs in the arts, and for the acquisition 
by purchase, gift or otherwise, of works of art; 

 
b. Subject to City Council approval, initiate, sponsor or direct special programs 

which will enhance the artistic and cultural climate of the City; 
 
c. Establish close liaison with other commissions and civic organizations in order to 

foster public interest in the arts; 
 
d. Advise the City Council concerning the interpretation and implementation of the 

City’s established art and cultural policies and practices, including the Art & 
Cultural Master Plan, as they relate to the Art & Cultural Commission’s 
objectives; 

 
e. In February of each year, prepare for City Council review an assessment of the 

Art & Cultural Commission’s goals, plans and objectives from the prior fiscal year 
and recommend for Council approval the Art & Cultural Commission’s goals, 
plans and objectives for the next fiscal year. 

 
f. Perform such other functions and duties as may be directed by the City Council. 

 
ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP AND TERM OF OFFICE 

9.D

Packet Pg. 192



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 
 
Section 1.  Number and Qualifications 
 

 The Art & Cultural Commission shall consist of the number and type of members 
in accordance with Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.56.010. 

 

Members do not need to be a resident of Capitola. 
 
Section 2.  Selection and Appointment of Members 
 
 Applications for Art & Cultural Commission members will be received by the City and 
forwarded to the Chairperson of the Art & Cultural Commission.  Applicant(s) will attend a minimum 
of one Commission meeting, conference with the Chair and Commissioner(s) regarding the 
obligations and duties of being a commissioner prior to receiving approval for appointment. The 
Chair will forward the Commission’s recommendation(s) for approval of applicant(s) to the City 
Clerk/Mayor.  

The Council Member and Planning Commissioner appointees shall be selected by a majority 
vote of their respective boards.  The remaining appointees shall be appointed to the Art & 
Cultural Commission by a majority vote of the City Council.   
 

Section 3.  Term of Office 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in Municipal Code Section, 2.56.030 the members shall 
serve for a term of two (2) years and may be reappointed for successive two-year terms. with a 
term limit set at a maximum of three (3) consecutive terms, two-year terms. Termed-out members 
may reapply after a minimum of two years has passed since the most recent term. 
 
Section 4.  Removal of Members 

 As established in Administrative Police I-5, any member who is absent for three meetings, 
and who fails to provide an excuse that is determined by the Chair to be reasonable, may be 
removed by the City Council.  All members of the Commission serve at the pleasure of the City 
Council and therefore may be removed from office, without cause, and at any time, by the 
affirmative vote of three City Council members.  

Section 5. Other Members 

The commission will also allow youth members as described in Capitola Administrative Policy I-38. 

 

 
ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS 

 
Section 1.  Selection of Officers 
 
 As soon as practicable, following the first day of January of each year, there shall be 
elected as officers for the Commission a Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson.  An election shall be 
held at the next regular meeting to fill any office that becomes vacant during the calendar year. 
 
Section 2.  Chairperson 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 193



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 
 The Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the members from among their 
membership.  The Chairperson shall preside at all regular meetings and shall call all special 
meetings.  The Chairperson shall use Roberts Rules of Order to conduct the meetings. He or she 
shall represent the Commission before the Council. 
 
Section 3.  Vice Chairperson 
 
 The Vice Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the Commission members.  He 
or she shall assume all duties of the Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson. 
 
Section 4.  Staff Representative 
 
 The Staff Representative shall be hired by the City Manager.  General duties include:  

 1. Preparing, assembling and mailing meeting packets; 

 2. Correspondence and communication; 

 3. Record keeping; 

 4. Staff reports; 

 5. Financial reports; 

 6. Meeting minutes; 

 7. Liaison to the public; 

 8. Other tasks as assigned. 
 
  

ARTICLE V. COMMITTEES 
 
Section 1.  Establishment of the Committees 
 

The Art & Cultural Commission may designate specific committees as follows: Public 
Art, Volunteers, Fundraising, Marketing and any other committee as necessary.  Committees 
shall be composed of no more than (3) commissioners.  The committees may include volunteer 
members as deemed necessary by the Art & Cultural Commission.  The committees shall report 
to the Art & Cultural Commission on no less than a quarterly basis.   
 
Section 2.  Membership of Committees 
 
 The Chairperson shall make all assignments and appoint the Chairperson of each 
committee with the consensus of the commission. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI. MEETINGS 
 
Section 1.  Open Meetings 
 
 All regular and special meetings of the Commission are subject to the Brown Act and 
therefore are advertised and open meetings to which the public and the press shall be invited. 
 
Section 2.  Regular Meetings 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 194



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 
 Regular meetings of the Commission shall be held monthly on a day, time and location to 
be decided upon by the Commission on an annual basis.  Any changes to regular meeting day, 
time and location will be provided to the Office of the City Clerk for calendaring purposes. 
 
Section 3.  Special Meetings 
 
 A special meeting may be called by the Chairperson of the Commission or by vote of the 
Commission.  Notice of such special meeting shall be given as required by law; and the purpose of 
or the business to be transacted during such special meeting shall be stated in the notice. 
 
Section 4.  Quorum 
 
 A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the Commission in accordance with 
Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.56.010. 

 

Section 5.  Absence of Quorum 
 
 In the absence of a quorum at any meeting, such meeting shall be adjourned to the next 
regular meeting date by any member present.  No meeting may be declared adjourned for lack of a 
quorum until a fifteen (15) minute period after the scheduled time of the meeting has elapsed. 
 
Section 6.  Conduct of Meeting 
 
 At the time and place established for any meeting, when a quorum is present, the 
Chairperson shall call the meeting to order.  The normal order of business shall include at least the 
following: 
 
 
Section 6. Conduct of Meeting (Continued) 
 

a. Roll call 
b. Adoption of the Agenda 
c. Oral communications (open to the public items not on the agenda) 
d. Approval of minutes of previous meetings 
e.  Discussion of old or unfinished business; review of recommendations and action on 

same 
f. New business 
g. Commissioner Reports 
h. Staff Reports 
i. Communications  
j. Future Agenda Items 
k. Adjournment 

 
Section 7.  Voting 
 
 All questions shall be resolved by a majority vote of the members present.  The vote shall 
be taken by roll call vote, voice vote, or by the raising of hands; provided that, at the request of any 
member, the vote shall be taken by a roll call vote. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENTS 

9.D

Packet Pg. 195



Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits  
September 26, 2019 
 
 
 These Bylaws may be amended from time to time by a vote of the Commission and 
approval by the City Council. 
 
  

 
ARTICLE VIII. ADOPTION AND EFFECT 

 
Section 1.  Adoption 
 
 Immediately upon a majority vote of the Commission and approval by the City Council 
these Bylaws shall be in full force and effect; any and all provisions of previously adopted Bylaws, 
policies, or procedures which may be totally or partially in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2.  Effect 
 
 These Bylaws shall not be considered or construed as superseding any ordinance or 
directive of the City Council of the City of Capitola, nor shall they preclude the preparation and 
adoption of further procedural manuals and policies by which the Commission may direct its 
activities. 
 
 
Revisions to Art & Cultural Commission Bylaws 
 
01/22/04 Resolution No. 3326   Original Bylaws approved by City Council 
05/26/05 Resolution No. 3463   Amended Article VI, Section 2, Regular Meetings 
04/26/12 Resolution No. 3915   Amended Article III, Section 1, of the Bylaws 
11/26/13 Resolution No. 3971  (Repealed) Amended Exhibit A of Resolution 3463,                        

Article III,Section 1, of the Bylaws 
11/24/15 Resolution No. 4035  Repealed Resolution No. 3971, Article III, 

      Section 1, of the Bylaws 
1/11/18 Resolution No. 4098    Amended Resolution No. 4035 Article III, 

     Section 1, of the Bylaws, Add Section 5 
9/26/19 Resolution No. __       Amended Article III, Section 3, Term-limits 

9.D

Packet Pg. 196


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Junior Guards Presentation
	Printout: Junior Guards Presentation

	B. Introduce New Building Inspector
	Printout: Introduce New Building Inspector


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. 9-12 draft minutes

	B. PC minutes
	Printout: PC minutes
	1. 9-5-19 Action

	C. Liability Claim
	Printout: Liability Claim

	D. Liability Claim
	Printout: Liability Claim

	E. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 8/2/19 City Check Register
	2. 8/7/19 City Check Register
	3. 8/16/19 City Check Register
	4. 8/23/19 City Check Register
	5. 8/30/19 City Check Register

	F. City Council Compensation
	Printout: City Council Compensation

	G. Development Agreement Ordinance
	Printout: Development Agreement Ordinance


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Commission Residency Report
	Printout: Commission Residency Report
	1. City Attorney letter PC residency
	2. Ordinance 823 (2000)
	3. Ordinance 375 excerpt (1974)
	4. 11-29-2000 minutes excerpt
	5. Ordinance 830 (2001)
	6. Public comment

	B. Solid Waste Program Update
	Printout: Solid Waste Program Update
	1. Monterey_Regional_Waste_Management_District_8-1-10
	2. Green Wate Recovery Refuse_Recycing_Yard_Waste_Francise_Agreement_4-24-08
	3. Capitola_30-Day_Notice_Agmt_Termination817

	C. Library Update
	Printout: Library Update

	D. Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits
	Printout: Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits


	10. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Junior Guards Presentation
	2.B · Introduce New Building Inspector
	8.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	8.A.1 · 9-12 draft minutes

	8.B · PC minutes
	8.B.1 · 9-5-19 Action

	8.C · Liability Claim
	8.D · Liability Claim
	8.E · Approval of City Check Registers
	8.E.1 · 8/2/19 City Check Register
	8.E.2 · 8/7/19 City Check Register
	8.E.3 · 8/16/19 City Check Register
	8.E.4 · 8/23/19 City Check Register
	8.E.5 · 8/30/19 City Check Register

	8.F · City Council Compensation
	8.G · Development Agreement Ordinance
	9.A · Commission Residency Report
	9.A.1 · City Attorney letter PC residency
	9.A.2 · Ordinance 823 (2000)
	9.A.3 · Ordinance 375 excerpt (1974)
	9.A.4 · 11-29-2000 minutes excerpt
	9.A.5 · Ordinance 830 (2001)
	9.A.6 · Public comment

	9.B · Solid Waste Program Update
	9.B.1 · Monterey_Regional_Waste_Management_District_8-1-10
	9.B.2 · Green Wate Recovery Refuse_Recycing_Yard_Waste_Francise_Agreement_4-24-08
	9.B.3 · Capitola_30-Day_Notice_Agmt_Termination817

	9.C · Library Update
	9.D · Art and Cultural Commission Term Limits


